ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE

HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE

March 7, 2005
3:21 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Represent at i
Represent at i
Represent at i
Represent at i
Represent at i
Represent at i
Represent at i

ve
ve
ve
ve
ve
ve
ve

MEMBERS ABSENT

Tom Ander son, Chair
Pet e Kott

Gabriell e LeDoux
Bob Lynn

Nor man Rokeberg
Harry Crawford
David Guttenberg

Al l nmenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BILL NO. 7
"An Act relating to the calculation and paynent of unenpl oynent
conpensati on benefits; and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED CSHB 7(L&C) OUT OF COWMM TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL:. HB 7

SHORT TI TLE: UNEMPLOYMENT COVPENSATI ON BENEFI TS
REPRESENTATI VE(S) CRAWORD, GUTTENBERG

SPONSOR( S) :

01/ 10/ 05
01/ 10/ 05
01/ 10/ 05
02/ 18/ 05
02/ 18/ 05
02/ 23/ 05
02/ 23/ 05
02/ 23/ 05
03/ 04/ 05
03/ 04/ 05
03/ 07/ 05

L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
Schedul ed But Not Heard
L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

(H PREFI LE RELEASED 12/ 30/ 04
(H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
(H) L&C, FIN

(H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
(H -- Meeting Canceled --

(H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
(H Heard & Held

(H) M NUTE( L&C)

(H)

(H)

(H)

W TNESS REG STER

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- March 7, 2005



PATRI CK SHI ER, Enpl oynent Security Tax

Di vision of Enploynent Security

Al aska Departnment of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions regarding HB 7.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R TOM ANDERSON cal | ed the House Labor and Conmerce Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 3:21:02 PM Represent ati ves
Quttenberg, LeDoux, Lynn, Crawford, and Anderson were present at
the call to order. Representatives Rokeberg and Kott arrived as

the neeting was in progress.

HB 7 - UNEMPLOYMENT COVPENSATI ON BENEFI TS

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the only order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 7, "An Act relating to the calculation and
paynment of unenpl oynent conpensation benefits; and providing for
an effective date."

3:22: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stated that he had received a letter
from the comm ssioner regarding his questions dated March 1,
2005, and he wished to have it entered into the record.

PATRI CK SHI ER, Enpl oynent Security Tax, Division of Enploynent
Security, Al aska Departnent of Labor and Wrkforce Devel opnent,
was available to answer questions fromthe conmttee nenbers.

3:23:29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Shier what the inpact of this
bill would be on enpl oyers.

MR. SH ER referred to Table 6 in the information packet provided
by the Al aska Departnent of Labor and Wrkforce Devel opnent
(ADLMWD). The table was entitled, "Estimated Max Cost per Worker
for Average Enployer.™ He said that the table, "reflected as
both a percentage and a cardinal nunber for that average

enpl oyer. "
3:24: 25 PM

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- March 7, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if the $530 anount |isted in Table
6 for 2006 applied to this year.

MR. SH ER replied, "That, for the average enployer, is the cost
for a worker that is paid up to exceeding the taxable wage
base." He said that currently the maxi num average cost is $530
per year.

CHAI R ANDERSON cl arified that 2007 the average cost would be $11
nore per enpl oyee.

MR. SHI ER agr eed.
3:25:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RCOKEBERG asked what the nmaxinum was that an
enpl oyer woul d pay on one enpl oyee.

MR. SH ER replied that the maxi mum would be based on a penalty
rate for an enployer that "has not been a good partner”: 5.9
percent of $27, 000.

CHAI R ANDERSON commented that that cal culati on woul d equal about
$1, 350.

3:26:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the penalty rate would be for
enpl oyers who had negl ected to pay.

MR. SHI ER responded affirmatively and noted that a very snall
nunber of enployers are penalized.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked what the maxinmum anount was
W t hout penalties.

MR. SH ER replied that Table 6 in the information packet |isted
the nmaxi mum amount the average enployer would pay. He said,
"2006 shows us there's no cost associated with this bill that is
reflected in the year 2006. The earliest we expect it to show
up is 2007, and that wuld be $11 nore for the average

enpl oyer. ™
3:27:02 PM

CHAI R ANDERSON cl arified, "It goes up to $20 per enployee [in]
2008, nmamintains the $20 [in] 2009, and then goes to $13 [in]

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- March 7, 2005



2010, but then it goes down to zero. |Is that because there's a
cap?"

MR SH ER replied that this is because the effects of any
i ncreased cost to the Unenploynment Insurance (U) Trust Fund are
expected to have played out by that point.

3:27:33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD, in response to Representative LeDoux,
commrented that [the cost woul d be] $64 over four years.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Shier if there was a statute
that stipulated that the average percentage of enployer
contribution would be a certain anmount and the that of the
enpl oyee woul d be a certain anount.

MR SH ER replied that Table 7 in the information packet
reflects the average tax rates from 1983 to the present.

3:28:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked why [the contributions] are
vari abl e.

MR. SH ER replied that there is a statutory fornula based on the
in-flows and out-flows to the U Trust Fund over the prior
several periods.

CHAI R ANDERSON explained to Representative Rokeberg, "I think
Representative Crawford ... wanted you to be able to ask that
question in terns of the effects on business. But | think the
reason he sponsored the |egislation, based on his testinony |ast
neeting, was that he thought it was negligible or limted at
best, and the needs of the enployee, unenployed, would outweigh
the smal |l anmount raised on the enpl oyer

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD replied that this answer was accurate.

3:29: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG commented that any burden on snal
business today is not offset. He said, "It's |ike saying
Wrkers' Conp premiuns don't matter, insurance taxes don't

matter, the cost of doing businesses don't matter, real property
taxes don't matter.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- March 7, 2005



3:30:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD directed the commttee's attention to
Table 1 of the information packet, which he explained showed
that this has been the |ongest period over the |ast 40 years
[where there had been no <change in the unenploynent
conpensation] . During that tinme period, he stated, "we' ve | ost
) 31 or 32 percent of the actual unenploynent dollar, so
actually the benefit has gone to snmall business rather than to
t he unenpl oyed wor ker over that tinme." He pointed out:

At the sane tinme that the average annual increase was
3.1 percent and went to 166.7 percent of what it was
in 1984, over that 20 years we l|lost 29 cents of the
unenpl oynent doll ar. So sonebody got that 29 cents
and it wasn't the worker. ... The person that was
supposed to be paying that ..., four-fifths of it
cones from an enployer and one-fifth comes from the
enpl oyee. That was where it got cheaper, and the
unenpl oyed worker didn't benefit. ... W should
correct this inequity.

3:32: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG comented that nost retail businesses
have been unable to raise their prices for the last 5-10 years.
There's a m sconception about the economcs of this country, he
said, and nost people don't understand the inpacts on pricing
and why our inflation level is relatively low. He remarked that
his business has been unable to increase prices for the past
four years.

3:34: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWCRD replied that he had been going by the
consuner price index (CPl) which is an average of prices going
up. [ The CPI] went up 67 percent over that tinme, he noted, and
t he unenpl oynent conpensation only went up 30 percent. He said:

| know that there are sone small businesses that have
price sensitivity that aren't able to raise their
prices. There were sone businesses that were able to
raise their prices a lot nore, but that was the
average that it canme out to: about a 3 percent per
year rise in prices that ... didn't coincide with the
rise in unenpl oynent.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- March 7, 2005



3:34:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noted that the 61 percent increase in
CPl was between 1984 and 2004, spanning 20 years.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD remarked, "W |ost 31 percent over that
20 years."

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked how rmuch was made up in increases.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD replied, "That's where we are right now,
we're 31 percent down."

3:36:18 PM

CHAI R ANDERSON stated his support for the bill and noted that
it's the same bill one he sponsored |ast year. He asked M.
Shier if the departnent supports the bill

MR. SHI ER deferred to the departnent conm ssioner.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX comented that she likes the first five
and a half pages of the bill, but she was confused by Sections 2
and 3.

MR. SH ER replied that Section 2 was an extension of the prior
table that would increase the weekly benefit anount by a set
amount for each increnent in earnings: $12 for every $750 of
base earni ngs. "It's just an extension of that so that we can
increase the weekly benefit anount $12 for every $750 of
earnings up to the new i ntended nmaxi nrum weekly benefit anount.”

3:38:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX stated that she was confused by Section 3,
whi ch she said, "looks l|like the benefits will be increased in
the future through the Departnent of Labor."

MR SH ER replied that Section 3 would connect the weekly
benefit amount to the CPlI changes.

CHAI R ANDERSON turned to Section 3, page 7, line 11 which read:
"The depart nent shal | adopt regulations to establish a
nmet hodol ogy to cal culate new anpbunts that increase the highest
weekly benefit amount in (d) of this section by $2 increnents."”
He asked, "Is this a new nethodology or calculation that
Representative Crawford i s proposing?"

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- March 7, 2005



MR. SHI ER deferred to the bill sponsor
3:40: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD expl ained, "It pegs the weekly benefit
anpunt to the average weekly wage in out-years, from 2007 on, so

that we don't have to conme back. ... It would add another $2 for
every $250 of base wage...." He then read Section 3, page 7,
lines 16-19: "The nethodol ogy established under this subsection

may not result in new weekly benefit anpbunts that exceed 50
percent replacenent of the average weekly wages in this state as
determ ned under (k) of this section.” He noted that the
average weekly wage mght go down or up, but the benefit would
be pegged to it regardl ess. He remarked that there have been a
coupl e of years where the average weekly wage actually went down
i n Al aska.

3:41:26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked, "Were does this peg anything to
t he CPI?"

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFCORD replied that the benefits would not be
pegged to the CPI but to the average weekly wage.

MR SHER clarified that the average weekly wage is a
cal cul ati on based on an aggregation of all wages divided by the
nunber of workers and the nunber of weeks worked.

CHAI R ANDERSON asked M. Shier to interpret Section 3, page 7,
line 7.

The commttee took an at-ease from 3:43:18 PMto 3:45:32 PM

MR. SH ER replied that Section 3 nmkes an automatic adjustnent
to the weekly benefits, which nmay be up or down, depending on
t he average weekly wage.

CHAI R ANDERSON comrented that the adjustnent concerned him and
he woul d consi der an amendnent.

3:46: 35 PM

CHAI R ANDERSON asked M. Shier if it would affect the rest of
the bill if Section 3 was del et ed.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- March 7, 2005



MR. SH ER was reluctant to offer an opinion.

CHAI R ANDERSON read Sections 4, 5, and 6, and stated that he
didn't think these would affect Section 3.

3:47:52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to adopt Conceptual Anmendnent 1,
whi ch woul d del ete Section 3 fromHB 7.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD obj ected to the amendnent. He said:

One of the big argunments about ever adjusting the
unenpl oynent insurance, or even the mninmm wage, has
been that when we |l eave it alone for a nunber of years
like this, then we have to nake a big adjustnent. To
catch up with the inflationary pressure, we've had to
nove in a big way this vyear to change the

unenpl oynent . If we were to just change it $2 or $4
at a tinme per year, then there wouldn't be this big
adjustnent [later].... The average weekly wage goes
up some years and it goes down sone years. | think it

would be a good thing to reflect what the actual
econony is doing in the state. [In 1987 and 1988] it
woul d have gone down if we had had this adjustnment in
her e. This is not an escal ator. If it were the
consuner price index it would have continued to go up
in '87 and '88, but this is an adjustnment that's
pegged to the average weekly wage. | think it's a
good i dea.

CHAI R ANDERSON pointed out that the State of Wshington was the
only state that has the m ninmum wage tied to the CPlI, and every
year it increased: it never went down.

3:50: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG commented, "This is not a debate
bet ween workers' rights and the health of a small business...

[ There are] |arger societal needs that we need to be exam ning."

Particularly in Alaska, he said, U is wused to balance out
SWi ngs in seasonal enploynent. He noted, "This is only tied to
t he highest weekly benefit anobunt, so you're not |ooking at the
bottom you're looking at the top and how nany people are

actually eligible for that." He comented that there would be
sone risk involved by having the benefits tied to the average
wages rather than to the cost of living; in "boom years, gas

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- March 7, 2005



line years,"” when unenploynent is |low, people with the top tier
wages will be enployed. He supported Section 3 "so that we
don't have to keep com ng back to it."

3:53: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFCORD referred to Table 7 in the information
packet and pointed out that in 1988 and 1989, years of high
unenpl oynent, the U tax rate went to 3.67 percent and then to
4.14 percent. He comented, "Had that been pegged to the
average weekly wage in those years, the weekly benefit anount
woul d have gone down and this tax rate wouldn't have been as
high in those high unenploynent years.” He pointed out that in
2002 and 2003 the tax rate was dropping, because there was high
enpl oynent those years.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX conmented that she thought a raise in
benefits should be a legislative decision, so she would not
support Section 3.

3:55:14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Shi er to anal yze
Representative Crawford's statenent that the rates went up
during high unenploynent periods, and if the benefits were tied
to the average weekly wages they wouldn't have gone up so nuch.
He stated that he disagreed with this theory, and said that he
t hought it was because the demands on the trust fund had gone

up.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFCRD said that the benefit amount woul d have
dropped so the tax rate would not gone so high under that
scenari o. He comented that it probably would have gone up
because of the pressure on the trust fund, but it would not have
gone up as nuch.

MR. SH ER, in response to Representative Rokeberg, replied that
there were so many things going on in Alaska's econony that it
would be difficult to guess all the things that contributed to
the rise in U tax rates in 1988 and 1989.

3:57:29 PM

A roll call vote was taken. Representati ves LeDoux, Lynn,
Anderson, Rokeberg, and Kott voted in favor of Conceptual
Amendnent 1. Representatives GQuttenberg and Crawford voted

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- March 7, 2005



against it. Therefore, Conceptual Amendnent 1 passed by a vote
of 5-2.

3:58: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX noved to adopt Conceptual Anendnent 2,
deleting "or (h)" on page 6, line 25. There being no objection,
Conceptual Amendnent 2 was adopt ed.

3:59: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Shier to send him information
on the [State Training and Enploynment Programi or "STEP
progranmi. He asked if the U tax funded the STEP program

MR. SH ER stated that a portion of the enployee contributions
are used to fund the STEP program

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Shier to verify that to himin
witing. He also asked that M. Shier send hima report on what
prograns are being funded by the STEP program and he was
particularly interested in their geographic distribution.

4:00: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD nobved to report HB 7 as anended out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB 7(L&C) was noved
fromthe House Labor and Comrerce Standing Commttee.

ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
4:00: 36 PM

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- March 7, 2005



